ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2017
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Chris Tuck

Representati ve Adam Wol

Representative Chris Birch

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson

Representative Gary Knopp

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Andy Josephson (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 31

"An Act requiring the Departrment of Public Safety to develop a
tracking system and collection and processing protocol for
sexual assault examnation Kkits; requiring |aw enforcenent
agencies to send sexual assault examnation kits for testing
within 18 nonths after collection; requiring an inventory and
reports on untested sexual assault examnation Kkits; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 7
"An Act relating to the exhibition of marked ballots."

- MOVED CSHB 7(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 82

"An Act relating to vehicle registration; relating to off-road
system restricted noncomrmercial drivers' |licenses; relating to
of f- hi ghway commercial drivers' licenses; relating to off-road
system eligible areas; and relating to notor vehicle liability
i nsurance. "

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2017



BILL: HB 31
SHORT TITLE: SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM NATI ON KI TS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TARR

01/ 18/ 17 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H STA, FIN

01/ 31/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
01/ 31/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 17 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 02/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
BILL: HB 7

SHORT TITLE: DI SPLAY OF PHOTOS OF MARKED BALLOT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KREI SS- TOVKI NS

01/ 18/ 17 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H STA, CRA

01/ 31/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
01/ 31/ 17 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 02/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

CELESTE NOVAK, St aff

Representative Tarr

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 31 on behalf of
Representative Tarr, prine sponsor.

REI D MAGDANZ, St af f

Representati ve Krei ss-Tonkins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 7 on behalf of
Representative Krei ss-Tonkins, prime sponsor.

LI BBY BAKALAR, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Labor and State Affairs Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law (DQOL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 7.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2017



ALI CI A NORTON, Intern

Represent ati ve Krei ss-Tonki ns

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented Anendnent 1 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Krei ss-Tonkins, prinme sponsor of HB 7.

TARA RICH, Legal and Policy Director

American G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 7.

TASHA ELI ZARDE
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 7.

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 31, as prine sponsor.

KEELEY OLSON, Executive Director

St andi ng Toget her Agai nst Rape (STAR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 31.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:04:54 PM

CHAIR JONATHAN KREI SS-TOWKINS called the House State Affairs
St andi ng Committee nmeet i ng to or der at 3:04 p. m
Representatives Tuck, Wol, Birch, Johnson, Knopp, and Kreiss-
Tonkins were present at the call to order. Representati ve
LeDoux arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 31- SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM NATI ON KI TS

3:06: 24 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 31, "An Act requiring the Departnent of
Public Safety to develop a tracking system and collection and
processing protocol for sexual assault examnation Kkits;
requiring law enforcenment agencies to send sexual assault
exam nation kits for testing within 18 nonths after collection

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2017



requiring an inventory and reports on untested sexual assault
exam nation kits; and providing for an effective date.”

3:07:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if rape kits from victinms who choose
not to prosecute remain in the backlog and who owns the kits

He added that his question relates to the issue of
deoxyri bonucleic acid (DNA) evidence being tracked and nade
avai l abl e for use in the prosecution of a serial crimnal.

3:08:43 PM

CELESTE  NOVAK, Staff, Representative Tarr, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Tarr, prine sponsor of
HB 31, said that the rape kits, once received by the crine | ab,
remain there in perpetuity. She stated that even if the victim
chooses not to pursue the case, the DNA evidence is kept on hand
should it needed in that case or in a serial assault case.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if one of the reasons for a backlog
of unprocessed rape Kkits is that there is no imediately
pressi ng prosecution.

M5. NOVAK responded that is correct. She said the Departnent of
Public Safety (DPS) reported that the Scientific Crine Detection
Laboratory ("the crine lab") is currently able to keep up with
rape kit processing requests. She added that the fiscal note
reflects DPS' s anticipation of an increase in kits submtted
shoul d HB 31 becone | aw

3:10: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked about the current procedures for
handling rape kits. He asked if they are stored in the DPS
crime lab until they are ready to be processed; shipped out of
state to be processed and stored; or shipped out of state to be
processed then shipped back to the crine |ab.

M5. NOVAK offered her wunderstanding that the DPS crine lab is
processi ng the backlog of kits, and the kits are not going out
of state. She offered to provide the commttee additional
information for clarification.

CHAIR KREISS-TOWINS nentioned the two different processes

described in the previous House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
nmeeting of 01/31/17: one, using US. Departnment of Justice

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2017



(DQJ) grant noney to clear out the backlog; and the other,
ensuring a backlog doesn't accumulate in the future.

M5. NOVAK stated that outsourcing kits to out-of-state |ocations
is due to the type of processing required. Kits that are
processed at the crine lab in Alaska are kept at the lab in
perpetuity.

3:12: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the backlog of unprocessed kits
was due to other reasons and "not just because they can't get to
them"

M5. NOVAK offered her understanding that there is no backl og,
because DPS caught up with the processing of all kits, after
receiving grant funds from DQJ.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON referred to a February 1 article fromthe
Al aska Public Media, which says that at the end of 2016, there
were 59 nore rape kits to process. She asked for the make-up of
t hose kits.

M5. NOVAK responded that the crime lab has 102 kits on hand
with 35 currently being processed. O the 102 Kkits yet
unprocessed, 2 are from Cctober, 25 from Novenber, 34 from
Decenber, and 41 from January [2017]. She added that DPS has
indicated it is able to maintain progress with those kits.

3:14: 52 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from3:15 p.m to 3:22 p.m
3:21:31 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced that HB 31 will be set aside.

[HB 31 was brought before the committee again follow ng the
hearing on HB 7.]

HB 7- DI SPLAY OF PHOTOS OF MARKED BALLOT

3:21:48 PM
CHAI R KREI SS-TOWI NS announced that the next order of business

woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 7, "An Act relating to the exhibition of
mar ked ballots."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked for confirmation that HB 7 would
change [AS 15.15.280] to nake a prohibited activity |egal. He
asked why the now outdated statute could not be renoved.

3:22:58 PM

REI D MAGDANZ, Staff, Representative Kreiss-Tonkins, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of Representative Kreiss-Tonkins, prine
sponsor of HB 7, explained that HB 7 would nmintain the
prohi biti on agai nst soneone sharing his/her own physical ballot,
yet allow sharing a photo, video, or other image of the ballot.

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL asked if the original statute, which
prohi bits sharing a physical ballot, also prohibits sharing a
photo i mage of the ballot.

MR. MAGDANZ agreed that the current statute has been interpreted
to include images of one's ballot. He said the current wording
of the statute is, "Subject to AS 15.15.240 a voter may not
exhibit the voter's ballot to an election official or any other
person so as to enable any person to ascertain how the voter
marked the ballot." He comrented that the statute has been
interpreted to refer to sharing the physical ballot or sharing a
photo of the ballot.

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL reiterated that the original statute
prohibits sharing one's ballot, and the statute has been

interpreted to include photos. He asked if HB 7 would renove
the "photo inage part" of the statute but continue to prohibit
sharing the physical Dballot. He stated that HB 7 would

differentiate between physical ballot sharing and ballot photo
sharing, yet they have been interpreted as being the sane.

MR. MAGDANZ responded that the intent of HB 7 would be to
prohi bit sharing a physical ballot, and to all ow sharing photos,
vi deos, or inmges of the ballot.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the interpretation of the origina
statute - to include photo inages - is a result of case testing
or of conmon belief. He also asked if the original statute
would be reinterpreted to renove photo imges from the
prohi bi tion.

3:26: 55 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2017



LI BBY BAKALAR, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Labor and State
Affairs Section, Civil Dvision (Juneau), Departnent of Law
(DAL), replied that the interpretation of the statute to include
photo images has not been case-tested in Al aska. She expl ai ned
that the statute was enacted in 1960 along with the prohibition
agai nst political persuasion at the polls. She stated that the
original intent of the 1960 statute was to ensure no one "waved
their ballot around” in order to encourage anyone to vote in a

particul ar way. She said that at the tinme of elections, the
Division of Elections (DOE) receives phone calls from voters
asking about the legality of ballot selfies. She referred to

Chapter 15 of the Al aska Statutes, which describes the election
code, and specifically AS 15.56, which addresses election
crimes. She said according to AS 15.15.300, the penalty for
exhibiting a marked ballot is "spoiling of the ballot."

MS. BAKALAR offered that the proposed legislation seeks to
"catch up with technol ogy" and opined that no one in the First
Al aska State Legislature, 1959-1960 anticipated selfies. She
mentioned that the prohibition against selfies has been case-
tested in New Hanpshire. The United States Court of Appeals for
the First Crcuit declared that a statute actively prohibiting a
ball ot selfie was unconstitutional under the First Amendnment [to
the U S. Constitution]. She said that to her know edge, there
has been no prosecution or civil renedy inposed for exhibiting a
ballot [in Al aska]. She went on to say DOL advises voters who
ask about being prosecuted for the crime of showing a marked
ballot selfie, that clearly the statute was never neant to
enconpass phot ography, because there was no portabl e photography
at the tinme the statute was enacted. She reiterated that the
intent of the statute was to prohibit el ectioneering.

3:29:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK offered his understanding that the statute
was enacted not only to prohibit electioneering, but also vote
buyi ng.

M5. BAKALAR agreed and offered that the statute was enacted to
avoid true malfeasance at the polls intended to inpact the

outcone of the election. She offered her understanding that
ballot selfies are taken to celebrate the act of having voted
and not to persuade anyone to vote in a particular way. She

admtted that the ballot selfie was "uncharted territory."

3:31: 00 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about the extent of absentee voting
in 1960, when the | aw was passed.

M5. BAKALAR replied that she believes absentee voting was
i npl enented after the |law was passed, since the |egislature of
1960 was the first legislature after statehood.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how the statute could be enforced at
all with respect to absentee ballots.

M5. BAKALAR responded that the statute refers to conduct at the
pol l'i ng pl ace.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX offered her belief that vote buying woul d
nore |likely occur in the context of absentee voting.

M5. BAKALAR referred to AS 15.20.010 to verify that the "no-
cause or no-fault" absentee voting statute was enacted in 1960,
the sane year as the exhibition prohibition statute.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for verification that the ballot
cannot be shown to another person in the polling place, but a
picture of the ballot can be shown and an absentee ballot can be
shown. She wondered aloud if it made any sense to have the
statute at all.

M5. BAKALAR responded that the issue is one of intent and state

of m nd. She asserted that the "evil"™ that the exhibition
prohibition is designed to prevent s vote buying and
influencing the outcone of the election. She went on to say

that whether it is an absentee ballot or a ballot in a polling
pl ace, without the intent to persuade soneone else to vote in a
particular way, there is no violation. She agreed that it is
i npossible to control everything that happens in regard to
absentee ballots, but, she added, DOE has security neasures for
processi ng absentee ballots. She reiterated that the exhibition
statute is nmeant to discourage pressure on voters at the polling
pl ace.

3:35:43 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH commented that if the issue hasn't cone up
and if no one has been prosecuted for violating the statute,

"maybe it's better to let sleeping dogs lie."

M5. BAKALAR asserted that the reason to clarify the issue is to
address voter confusion. She reiterated that DOE and DOL do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2017



field a substantial nunmber of phone calls from people asking
about the legality of ballot selfies. She added that as the
current law is technically drafted, it is hard for the agencies
to respond. She stated that the intent of HB 7 is to address
that confusion and tell voters that as long as they are not
trying to politically persuade anyone at the polling place, it
is alright to take a ballot selfie and share it wth their
friends.

3:37:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if it would be "cleaner" to repeal
the existing statute rather than nodify it.

M5. BAKALAR responded that she didn't think so, since HB 7 would
retain the policy behind the initial statute. She enphasi zed
that the 200-foot rule is to avoid political persuasion in the
polls, and it is still an inportant policy. She opined that
anending the statute that prohibits this particular conduct is
better than repealing the statute.

3:38: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL offered that since DOL still gets calls
about this issue, the statute change would give DOL a definitive
response. He said, "This is sort of a legal out for the

Department of Law ....

M5. BAKALAR agreed and added, "... and also for the D vision of
Elections and for voters in general." She cited states wth
active prohibition and high profile ballot selfie cases, and
offered that HB 7 would reduce voter confusion and allow DOE to
definitively tell voters, in statute, that this conduct is
permtted.

3:40:39 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TUCK stated his belief that the proposed
legislation attenpts to balance electioneering wth First

Amendrent  rights. He expressed his concern regarding undue
i nfluence or "vote bullying." He comented that he would Ilike
to see provisions that protect voters from vote bullying, even
in one's own hone. He said not only should the person filling

out the ballot be restricted, but the person trying to bully
should be restricted, and there should be a consequence for
bul I yi ng. He brought up another concern - the possibility of
peopl e taki ng photographs when other voters are behind them He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2017



said he had other concerns about restrictions in the general
area of polling locations. He opined that if ballot selfies are
al l oned, they should be allowed only inside the voting booth and
nowhere else in the polling place. He added his belief that it
is not aright to free speech to photograph other people in the
polling place. He asserted that a person should be bound by the
200-foot restrictions, currently in statute, until he/she is in
the voting booth. At that point, he clainmd, they are encl osed
and not taking photographs of other people. He concl uded t hat
there should be sone sort of limtation on when, where, and how
one phot ogr aphs.

3:42: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP noved to adopt Amendnent 1, [l abeled 30-
LSO111\A. 2, Bullard, 2/2/17], which read:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "ballots":
| nsert "and t he prohi bition on political
per suasi on near election polls"

Page 1, following line 2:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Section 1. AS 15.15.170 is anended to read:
Sec. 15. 15. 170. Prohi bition of political

persuasion near election polls. (a) During the hours
the polls are open, a person who is in the polling
place or wthin 200 feet of any entrance to the
polling place may not

(1) attenpt to persuade a person to vote
for or against a candidate, proposition, or question;
or

(2) physically display a photo, video, or
other imge of the person's marked ballot in an
attenpt to persuade a person to vote for or against a
candi date, proposition, or question.

(b) The election officials shall post warning

notices at the required distance in the form and
manner prescribed by the director."”

Page 1, line 3:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"
Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

Page 1, line 11, followng "(2)":

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2017



I nsert "subject to the prohibition on political
persuasion in, or within 200 feet of an entrance to, a
pol ling place under AS 15.15.170,"

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX obj ected for purpose of discussion.
3:43: 23 PM

ALICIA NORTON, Intern, Representative Kreiss-Tonkins, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Kreiss-Tonpkins
prime sponsor of HB 7, relayed that the proposed amendnent woul d
prohi bit physically showing a photo, video, or other inage of a
person's nmarked ballot within the polling place or within 200
feet of the polling place in an attenpt to persuade a person to
vote for or against a candi date, proposition, or question.

3:44:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX renoved her objection to the notion to
adopt Anmendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK obj ected for purpose of discussion.
3:44:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if "physically display a photo" means
to send it to soneone or share it wi th soneone.

M5. NORTON responded that the phrase neans having a phone and
directly putting it "in soneone's face."

3:45:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK stated that he thinks Amendnent 1 is an
i nportant anendnment, because it would prohibit electioneering by
a person exiting the voting booth, but still within the polling
| ocation, and would allow the display of the nmarked ballot photo
only after leaving the polling |ocation. He asserted that he
still has a concern regardi ng photographs taken within the 200-
foot perimeter, as the person is going to or from the voting
boot h. He offered his desire to address that issue at some
poi nt ..

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK renoved his objection to Arendnent 1. There
being no further objection, Armendnent 1 was adopt ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked Representative Tuck what problem he
has wi th phot ographi ng another person going into and out of the
pol ling | ocation.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK responded that a person has a right to
refrain from voting and cited his <concern regarding undue
pressure. He offered that people nay feel unconfortable wth
bei ng photographed in the voting |location and, consequently,
deterred from voti ng. He nentioned the possibility of a selfie

stick "comng over the top" while in the voting booth. He
asserted that if ballot selfies are allowed as a First Amendnent
right, then there needs to be l|imtations on when and how

phot ographs are taken.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked Ms. Bakalar to confirm that it is
now possible, under our current voting rules, to determ ne who
has voted and who has not voted, through poll watchers.

M5. BAKALAR responded, "That is correct.”

3:48: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if any public nmenber could | ook at the
el ectoral rolls.

M5. BAKALAR offered her wunderstanding that when the polling

pl ace is opened, election board nenbers are present. They are
trained to control the polling place and maintain proper custody
of the ballots. She added there are poll watchers assigned by

political parties and candidates to be in the polling places,
remain in ear shot of the poll workers, ask for nanmes to be
read, and exami ne precinct registers. She asserted that the
precinct register is a public record. She maintained that how a
person votes is constitutionally protected, but the fact that a
person voted in a given election is of public record.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK made the point that the poll watchers mnust

be trained and abide by rules. He conceded that after the
election is over, when the polling location is «closed
information on who voted becones public record. He said,

however, that he is not confortable with people, who are not
trained and do not know the rules, being able to take
phot ographs in polling locations as voters conme and go. H s
concern, he said, was in regard to voter intimdation. He
stated his belief that there should be nore restrictions on when
and where polling | ocation selfies may be taken.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2017



3:50: 24 PM

CHAIR KREI SS-TOWKINS asked for clarification that "photographs
of people comng in and out of the polls," as Representative
Tuck nmentioned, is not in reference to a photograph of a ball ot
in the ballot booth, but taking photos of people who are waiting
to cast their ballots.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK confirned he was referring to a selfie
phot ograph i ncl udi ng sonmeone else in the polling |ocation.

CHAIR KREISS-TOWKINS asked if the scenario described by
Representative Tuck was currently |egal.

M5. BAKALAR stated that she doesn't believe there is any polling
pl ace photography prohibitions. She nentioned that the nedia is
in polling places every el ection day.

3:51:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH suggested that it would be inpossible to
keep reporters or caneras out of polling places, and a person's
presence at the polling place is public information. He
mai nt ai ned that one's personal space in the voting booth remains
sacr osanct.

3:52:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP commented that there is no perfect
| egislation and there will always be nore "what ifs." He said
he sees no problem with HB 7 or the [the adopted] Anmendnent 1.
He opi ned t hat [the adopt ed] Amendmnent 1 addr esses
Representative Tuck's concern in that it cites the prohibition
agai nst political persuasion. He stated he supports the bill,
as anended.

3:54:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked Ms. Bakalar, "Wat kind of training
are poll watchers given?"

M5. BAKALAR said there is a poll watcher's handbook but no other
formal training.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK opined that it is appropriate to ask "Wat

if, what if, what if?" He expressed the inportance of nmaking
sure that any ballot photo be Iimted to a person's own ballot.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2017



He referred to |language in [the adopted] Anendnent 1, beginning
on page 1, line 12 [as nunbered in the amendnent], which read:

(2) physically display a photo, video, or
other image of the person's marked ballot in an
attenpt to persuade a person to vote for or against a
candi date, proposition, or question.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK voi ced his concern that "person's" refers to
the individual person's ballot and not sone other person's
bal | ot .

V. BAKALAR confirmed that was her understanding - that
"person's" refers to the person who is taking a picture of
hi s/ her own ball ot.

CHAI R KREI SS-TOWKI NS asked if HB 7 would be clearer if the word
"person's” [adopted under  Anendnent 1] were changed to
"voter's".

V5. BAKALAR agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK expressed that he was confortable with [the
adopted] Anmendnent 1, wth the explanation that "person's"
refers to the person who narked the ballot. He added that any
necessary change to HB 7 could be made "down the road."

3:58: 29 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS opened public testinony on HB 7.
3:58:52 PM

TARA RICH, Legal and Policy Director, Anmerican Civil Liberties
Uni on (ACLU) of Al aska, said that the provisions of the election
statutes originally came from the Australian Ballot Reforns and
were enacted in the 1890s as a result of w despread election
problenms in the United States. She attested that Al aska adopted
the laws [prohibiting the display of ballots] wholesale as all
states had done. She asserted that the laws were in response to
the practice of political parties using color-coded or otherw se
distinctive ballots, which nade it obvious for whom a person was
voting, and thus nade it easier to influence voting and buy
vot es. Ballot laws were enacted that outlawed displaying
bal | ot s. Ms. Rich clainmed, "That, in Anerica, is what allowed
us to have a secret ballot."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 2, 2017



M5. RICH went on to say that as technology has advanced, the
prohi bition against displaying one's ballot was too broadly
worded. She gave her opinion that [the adopted] Anendnent 1 is
needed, because the ACLU has challenged these laws in five
states that use the interpretation of photographing a ballot as
a violation of the election laws. She said that in her opinion,
Al aska has avoided |egal challenges because of DCE s reasonable
interpretation of the law - that it should not be enforced
agai nst peopl e phot ographing their own ball ots.

M5. RICH pointed out the second aspect of the issue, that one
has a free speech right to take a photo of his/her own ballot.
She said this right is known, in legal termnology, as core
political speech, and is one of the npbst protected rights. She
of fered that photographs of people going into and out of polling

| ocations are currently conpletely |egal. She said that
currently the only photo restriction in a polling place is that
of the ballot itself. She said if the law restricted what a
phot ograph could contain, it would be unconstitutional, because
it wuld be a "content-based" restriction. She added that

controlling speech in that way would alnost assuredly be a
violation of the First Amendnent right to free speech.

M5. RICH stated her third point, which is that this issue isn't
j ust about vot er conf usi on, but is also about | egal
vulnerabilities for the State of Al aska. Bal | ot selfie
prohi bition may becone a legal liability for DOE

4:04: 28 PM

TASHA ELI ZARDE testified that she supports HB 7. She said she
is a 17-year-old high school student who cannot yet vote. She
said in two or three nonths she will be eligible to vote and
| ooks forward to comenorating the event by taking a ballot
selfie. She conceded that the issue HB 7 addresses is a snal

i ssue, but stated, "I personally think it's all about being able
to express ny First Amendnent right.” She asserted that
allowing ballot selfies would create a nore civically engaged
community through social nedia, especially anong teenagers.

MS. ELI ZARDE said she is a senior at Juneau Douglas H gh Schoo
(JDHS). She said she discussed HB 7 with two governnent classes
taught by Gary Lehnhart and reported that the vast mgjority of
the approximately 40 students in those classes supported HB 7
for the sane reasons she supports it. She reiterated those
reasons: to encourage self-expression and to engage nore

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 2, 2017



teenagers in the political process. She opined that with all
the |l egal issues that were raised in the commttee neeting, HB 7
would be a good way to clarify the statute. She conceded t hat
the law was instituted for good reasons, but "tines have
changed, " and nost people who choose to take a ballot selfie, do
Sso because they want to express their love for voting or support
for a candidate, not to intimdate other voters. She
reenphasi zed that she fully supports HB 7.

4:07:43 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS cl osed public testinony on HB 7.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK referred to the testinmony of Ms. Rich of the
ACLU, as well as page 1, lines 5 and 11, specifying the "voter's
ballot" or "voter's marked ballot”, and agreed wth the
recommendation that changing [the |anguage adopted under]
Amendnent 1 to read "voter's marked ballot” would nake the
| anguage consistent with the rest of the statute.

4:09: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report HB 7, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 7(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.
4:09: 35 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from4:10 p.m to 4:14 p. m

HB 31- SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM NATI ON KI TS

4:14: 04 PM

CHAIR KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that as the final order of
busi ness, the conmttee would once again consider HB 31, "An Act
requiring the Departnent of Public Safety to develop a tracking
system and coll ection and processing protocol for sexual assault
exam nation kits; requiring law enforcenent agencies to send
sexual assault examnation kits for testing within 18 nonths
after collection; requiring an inventory and reports on untested
sexual assault examination kits; and providing for an effective
date."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how DNA, as evidence, is stored, if
there is no rel ated prosecution.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 2, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TARR, Al aska State Legislature, as prine sponsor
of HB 31, expressed her understanding that collected evidence is

the property of |aw enforcement wuntil such tine a crinme is
resol ved. She nentioned that property that is confiscated
during an arrest would be returned if the case was resolved
favorably for the arrested individual. She reconmended

consulting with the Alaska Police Standards Council (APSC) to
ensure her information is accurate.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed her concern for privacy. She
of fered her understanding that once evidence is collected, it is
under the <control of the Ilaw enforcenent agency that s
investigating the incident, and sexual assault kits are treated
as evidence and are in the physical custody of the |[|aw

enf orcenent agency. She described a hypothetical situation in
which [a rape] happens and a rape kit is collected, but either
the charges are dropped or no one is charged. |In that scenari o,
she said, evidence has been collected, but "no crine's been
commtted."” She observed that the fiscal note reflects the cost
of storing the DNA evidence and tracking it. Representati ve

Johnson stated that while she supports catching crimnals and
prosecuting themto the full extent of the |aw, she has concern
for the those whose DNA is being kept when they have never been
charged with a crine.

4:18:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR related two different scenarios. One
i nvolves an individual who is sexually assaulted, a rape kit is
coll ected, but because it was a known perpetrator, the kit was
not processed. She asserted that even if the perpetrator was
known to that victim |aw enforcenent has |earned that sonetines
the perpetrator has been involved in other crimes, and the
sexual assault incident should not be thought of as an isolated
case. She added that from |law enforcement's perspective, that
evidence is very valuable. She cited that this scenario
denonstrates the challenge of bal anci ng needs, and |aw
enforcenent has chosen the public safety need over the privacy
need of the perpetrator. She asserted that in this scenario,
charges woul d be pressed, but the kit would not be essential for
the prosecution to nake a case.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR related a circunstance where the victim
chooses not to press charges against the perpetrator and that,
she conjectured, was the basis of Representative Johnson's
concern. She queried, "Does a person have a right for that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 2, 2017



evidence to not be used in a way that would incrimnate themin
another crinme if they weren't pressing charges for this crime?"
She stated her understanding that this question has been
resolved in favor of the public safety need being the first
priority.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated her concern for a fiscal note
solely for the purpose of tracking rape kits, and not for
catching up with a rape kit backlog or for bringing justice to

vi ctins. She stated, "W have to be aware that ... this isn't
sonmething that's going to make it nore likely that soneone is
going to have justice; in this case, ... personal information's

going to be tracked.™

REPRESENTATI VE TARR responded that because there is currently no
tracking, it is inpossible to know where a kit is in the process
and who is in possession of the Kkit. She opined that the
greatest value of the tracking systemis ensuring a kit is not
lost in the process. She cited the challenges of rural
communities in collecting and handling evidence: a community
may not have a Village Public Safety Oficer (VPSO; a trooper
must cone from out of town; and there are tine |limts on the
viability of biological evidence. She conceded that these
ci rcunst ances are sonewhat unique to Al aska because of geography
and limted access between comunities, but she asserted that
the tracking system would facilitate identifying these problens.
She stated she shared the concerns that people have regarding
personal information in a database and the potential for it to
be used to harm an i ndivi dual .

4:25: 14 PM
CHAIR KREI SS-TOWI NS stated that HB 31 will be held over.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH paraphrased information provided to the

commttee by Representative Tarr and said, "Internal review
indicates that there are kits that were never submitted to the
| ab and go back as far as the md-'80s." He asked how many kits

are in the backl og.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR responded that the audit revealed a backl og
of 3,600 unprocessed rape Kkits. She added that these kits are
the ones that have not been sent to the crine |ab. She said
that the other nunbers [102 kits yet wunprocessed, 2 from
Cct ober, 25 from Novenber, 34 from Decenber, and 41 from January
2017] reflect the kits that have been sent to the crinme |ab and
the status of those kits. She pointed out that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 2, 2017



di screpancies between the nunbers denonstrate the need for
tracking both the chain of [custody] and the life cycle of each
kit. She said currently the only information known about a kit
is when it was received and "where it's at in processing."” She
mentioned that the 3,600 unprocessed rape kits are of nost
concern to the public - where they are and why they have been
| angui shi ng. She reiterated the inportance of processing rape
kits in order to discover perpetrators in other crines; she
referred to the article on Cdifford Lee [in the commttee
packet], which denonstrates the inportance of the DNA evidence
that Iinked himto prior assaults.

4:28:50 PM

KEELEY OLSON, Executive Director, Standing Together Agai nst Rape
(STAR), brought up the possibility of a victim submtting to a
forensic exam nation wthout giving consent to open an
investigation. She said the report, in that instance, is called
a non-investigative report. In Anchorage it is referred to as
an anonynous victimreport. She said that these victins are not
giving consent for the rape kits to be tested but may choose to
do so at any tine. She asserted that this practice provides
nore options for someone who is nervous about reporting. She
attested that this mechanism of reporting is a requirenent of
the Violence Against Wnen Act (VAWA) [of 1994]. She stated
STAR is very concerned about these anonynous kits being tested
wi thout the victimls consent.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH pointed out that in a comment made earlier,
once the sanple is taken, it is in law enforcenent control and
can be used "down the road." He stated, "It is an open question
for ne."

M5. OLSON responded that Representative Tarr has expressed she
is open to drafting policy to ensure that anonynmous Kkits, for
which there is no consent for investigation, are isol ated.
4:32:07 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS cl osed public testinony on HB 31.

[HB 31 was hel d over.]

4:32:21 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 2, 2017



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 4:32
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 2, 2017



